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The orderly method in which Columbia was planned resulted in an organized
and physically proportioned city. The two square mile area was divided
each way into twenty streets making ten blocks to the mile with a total
of forty blocks, all laid out slightly northwest and southeast.

Through the 1880s there was active farming within the city limits in areas
not fully developed for residential use. The commercial area was pri-
marily centered from the State House for several adjacent blocks north-
ward. The historic district was a residential area, except where small
business concerns were connected to the owners' homes.,

tastes and needs of the occupants. Architectural s f s varied from the
stately Greek Revival mansions, Georgian, Early Republic, "Bankers
Houses}'s and town houses to the '"Columbia Cottage'. The latter is of
particular interest for it is an adaptation of the standard Neo-Classic
cottages for local conditions. Here it has also been mixed with the
Bahaman cottage whose first floor was raised above ground level. The wood
body of the "Columbia Cottage', according to Dr. Harold N. Cooledge,
professor of Architectural History at Clemson University, may indicate
the use of "pattern books" which was very wide spread throughout the
nineteenth century.

As in all diversified cities, the houses built in Calumbia suited the

These surviving architectural and historical monuments of Columbia are
repeatedly threatened. The Historic Preservation Department of Columbia
City Planning has drawn up a color diagram according to the official list
of the Historical and Cultural Buildings Commission of Columbia which
illustrates the urgency of the city's preservation problem. (See attached
sheet) Note the destruction of not less than eight houses since 1967 in

nly the historic district. This visually clarifies the speed with which
phy31cal deterioration and aggressive businesses are shortsightedly
divesting Columbia of irreplaceable evidences of her past.

In late 1970 the remaining tangible old Columbia was being divided and
destroyed by encroaching concerns who gave little thought to restoration

or suitable replacement. With the help of the National Register of Historic
Places an added measure of pro{ectign and national recognition could

assist in saving Columbia' S'heﬁ;tage.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Columbia was created for its role as capital of South Carolina by an
act of the state legislature ratified March 22, 1786. The site was
chosen because of its approximate central geographical location and
use as a connecting point for upper and lower South Carolina. Provi-
sions of the bill provided a two square mile area to be purchased
from Thomas and James Taylor,

Wide streets were planned by John Gabriel Guignard, State Surveyor,

and blocks specified for public buildings with other lots sold for
private use with the stipulation that a suitable frame or brick structure
be erected within two years on each lot.

Public offices and records were moved from Charleston to the new State
House in 1789 and Columbia became the official seat of government with
the convening of General Assembly January 4, 1790.

Columbia Historic District I was established as a result of Columbia's
development into a center of government and trade between upper and
lower parts of the state. Also known as Arsenal Hill, it was a complex
of fine mansions and attractive homeg built before the Civil War. It
was a center of ante-bellum aristocra#cy, the era: of Radical Reconstruction,
restoration of the "Redeemerqu)and re-evolved as a center of state
participation in national affairs.

Recognized as one of the two remaining historic residential areas of
Columbia, it was zoned as such by the City of Columbia.

Politically and militarily significant as a center of state and nation-
ally related affairs with the Governor's Mansion as the focal point.
Architecturally significant for the variety of architectural styles
indicative or unique to the area which are rapidly vanishing. Landscape
architecture is noteworthy with the Caldwell-Hampton-Boylston House
gardens being the most significant example of garden planning from

the time the house was built c¢.1820-1830, through development formally
in the 1890s to the present,

Accounts of Sherman's burning of Columbia vary, but it is known that
Main Street was almost totally razed by fire as well as many homes in
the vicinity. With a great number of the more elnporate homes of the
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midway between Gadsden Street and Lincoln Street; north by a line
2/3 of way between Elmwood and Calhoun; east midway between Assembly
and Park for 1) blocks, then down Park Street to southern boundary.
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1830s to 1850s destroyed and Reconstruction surpressing the latent
potential for rebuilding, elegant homes were not built again until
the 1880s.

Columbia Historic District I, Arsenal Hill, has retained stately tree-
lined streets and a number of its original homes. With the scope of
business demands widening every year, and neglect and indifference
slowly deteriorating Columbia's material heritage, an extra measure

of protection is needed.

1. GOVERNOR'S MANSION, 800 Richland Street: Built in 1855 as officers'
barracks for Arsenal Academy, it was converted into a temporary house
for governor in 1868 and first used by Reconstruction Governor Robert
K. Scott. It was renovated in 1879 and has been continuously utilized
as governor's residence.

2, THE LACE HOUSE (ROBERTSON HOUSE), 803 Richland Street: Used as a
residence for political and community leaders through the early 1900s.
Excellent example of adaptive use through restoration; to be used as
part of the Governor's Mansion Complex. Association with the Governor's
Mansion supports its historic integrity while style unique to the area
reinforces its architectural value.

3. CALDWELL~-HAMPTON-BOYLSTON HOUSE, 829 Richland Street: As one of
Columbia's finest examples of Greek Revival Architecture, it served
as governor's mansion for Daniel H., Chamberlain 1874-1876. Built by
John Caldwell, Columbia banker, it was later the home of the Hampton
family, important in South Carolina affairs. Bought in 1894 by the
Bolystons who developed noteworthy formal gardens, October 27, 1965,
converted to Richland County Historic Preservation Commission and now
serves as the beautifully restored Tri~centennial Headquarters.

4, PALMETTO IRON WORKS AND ARMORY, 1802 Lincoln Street: Built by Glaze
and Boatwright c¢.1850 for converting flintlocks of the militia to
percussion locks. Important industrially and militarily for the manu-
facture of arms and munitions 1861-1865 for Confederate troops. In
1942 the City of Columbia constructed a community center from the
deteriorated shell of Palmetto Armory. /Affiﬁ},
YR Y
In order to preserve a meaningful cross-section of Columbia?éf§;§qa:4ﬁﬁ

material history and avert the anonymity of sometimes destnéctiv%ibL
progressive urbanity, these areas should be maintained andiréstgggd—
PR

as examples of past accomplishments and life styles.
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Historical and Cultural Buildings Commission, City of Columbia
Buildings shown here are the ones remaining as of Februray 1, 1971

Red - Group I (Highest Priority)
Green - Group II

Blue - Group III

Brown - Demolished since 1967



